
 

                                                                         Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 1 
 

  SURREY POLICE BOARD 
      ADMINISTRATOR 

    Regular Meeting Agenda 
 

 
Venue:   Virtual 
Date:      March 13, 2024 
Time:      2:00 PM 

 
 

 

 
ITEM 

 

 
PRESENTER 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
  
The Surrey Police Board recognizes that our work takes place on the ancestral, 
traditional, and unceded territories of the Coast Salish Peoples. 
 

Mike Serr 
 
 
 
 

 

B. ADOPTIONS 
 

1. Adoption of the Agenda – March 13, 2024 
 
2. Adoption of Minutes – January 19, 2024 
 

 
 

Mike Serr 
 

Mike Serr 
 

 
 
 

C. PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS 
  

1. Presentations 
 
a. Fraser Health Authority – Opportunities for Improved Speed  
  Management with Intersection Safety Cameras 
  Jasmin Chatrath and Tobin Copley 
  (Presentation)  
 
b. Community Engagement Update 
  (Presentation) 
 

2.  No Delegation Requests 
 

  
 

 
 

Chief Lipinski 
 
 
 
 

Chief Lipinski 

 
 
 
 

D. REPORTS 
 
 CHIEF CONSTABLE REPORTS 
 

1. Hiring, Diversity and Deployment Update 
 Report 2024-R003 - For Information 
 
2. Police Resources in British Columbia 2022 Publication 
 Report 2024-R004 - For Information 
 
3. Year-End Report:  2023 Expenditures - – Preliminary Financial Results 

 Report 2024-R005 – For Information 
 

4. Transition Updates 
 -Verbal - For Information 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Chief Lipinski 
 
 

Chief Lipinski 
 
 

Chief Lipinski 
 
 

Chief Lipinski 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Surrey Police Board – Regular Agenda  

 

                                                                         Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 2 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
 

1. Surrey Police Board – 2023 Per Diems 
 Report 2024-R006 - For Information 
  

 
 

Melissa Granum 

E. INFORMATION 
 

 No information. 
 

 
 
 
 

 

F. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

No correspondence. 
 
 

 
 
 

 

G. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 No new business. 
 

 
 
 

 

H. NEXT MEETING 
 
 The next meeting of the Surrey Police Board will be held on April 25, 2024. 

 
 

Mike Serr 
 

 

I. MOTION TO HOLD A MEETING IN A CLOSED SESSION 
 

It is in order for the Board to pass a motion to close the meeting to the public 
pursuant to Section 69 (2) (c), and (d) of the Police Act, which states: 
 
(2) if it believes that any of the following matters will arise in a meeting or 

hearing held by it, a board or committee may order that the portion of the 
meeting during which the matter will arise be held in private: 

 
(c) a matter concerning labour contract discussions, labour management 

relations, layoffs or another personnel matter; 
(d) a matter concerning information that a person has requested he or 

she be allowed to give in private to the board or committee. 
 

Mike Serr  

J. ADJOURNMENT Mike Serr  
 
 



                                                                        Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 1 

 
SURREY POLICE BOARD 

  Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
Venue:  Virtual 
Date:      January 19,2024 
Time:      12:00 PM 
 

 
 
 

Present: 
Mike Serr, Administrator 
 

Regrets: 
 

Staff Present: 
Norm Lipinski, Chief Constable 
Jennifer Hyland, Deputy Chief 
Mike LeSage, Deputy Chief 
Todd Matsumoto, Deputy Chief 
Rachel Milne, Acting Superintendent 
Melissa Granum, Executive Director 
Marion Chow, Executive Assistant 
Nathan Wong, Senior Manager, Finance 
Kyle Friesen, General Legal Counsel 
Nicola Webb, Human Resources Consultant 
Gayle Wlasiuk, Executive Services Manager 
 

 
 
 

The Surrey Police Board recognizes that our work takes place on the ancestral, traditional, and unceded 
territories of the Coast Salish Peoples. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 The January 19, 2024, Regular Board meeting was called to order at 12:00 PM. 
 
 The Board thanked the Surrey Police Service and RCMP frontline officers for keeping our community safe 
 in these challenging weather conditions. 
  

B. ADOPTIONS 
 

1. Adoption of the Agenda – January 19, 2024 
 
 The agenda for the January 19, 2024 Regular board meeting was approved. 

 
2. Adoption of Minutes – November 30, 2023 

 
   The minutes of the November 30, 2023 Regular board meeting were approved. 

 
C. PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS 
 

1. Presentations 
 
a. Recruiting – 30 X 30 Initiative 
  (Presentation) 
 
The Surrey Police Board received the presentation and thanked Acting Superintendent Milne for 
her work on this initiative. 
 



Surrey Police Board – Regular Minutes  

 

                                                                        Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 2 

The Board requested that regular updates be provided on hiring and diversity metrics. 
 

2.       No Delegation Requests 
 

D. REPORTS 
 
 CHIEF CONSTABLE REPORTS 
 

 1. Public Recording Devices:  Body Worn Cameras 
 Report 2024-R001 - For Information 
 (Presentation) 

 
The Surrey Police Board received the report and the presentation.  Deputy Chief Matsumoto 
provided the Board with answers to the questions asked. 
 

2. Transition Updates 
 Verbal - For Information 
 

The Surrey Police Board received the verbal update from the Chief Constable. 
 
 3. Financial Update - Year to Date Expenditures – November 30, 2023 

 Report 2024-R002 – For Information 
(Presentation) 
 
The Surrey Police Board received the report and presentation. 
 

  
E. INFORMATION 
 

 No information. 
 
F. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

No correspondence. 
 
G. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 No new business. 
 
H. NEXT MEETING 
 
 The next meeting of the Surrey Police Board will be held on March 5, 2024. 
 
I. MOTION TO HOLD A MEETING IN A CLOSED SESSION 
 

It is in order for the Board to pass a motion to close the meeting to the public pursuant to Section 69 (2) (c), 
and (d) of the Police Act, which states: 
 
(2) if it believes that any of the following matters will arise in a meeting or hearing held by it, a board or 

committee may order that the portion of the meeting during which the matter will arise be held in 
private: 

 



Surrey Police Board – Regular Minutes  

 

                                                                        Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 3 

(c) a matter concerning labour contract discussions, labour management relations, layoffs or another 
personnel matter; 

(d) a matter concerning information that a person has requested he or she be allowed to give in 
private to the board or committee. 

 
Motion approved. 

 
 

J. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The Surrey Police Board meeting adjourned at 1:07 PM. 

 
  Certified correct: 
 
 
  

_________________________________________   ___________________________________   
  Marion Chow, Executive Assistant    Mike Serr, Administrator  

 
 

 
 



 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 
REGULAR 

REPORT DATE: March 6, 2024 

BOARD MEETING DATE: March 13, 2024 

BOARD REPORT # 2024-R003  

 
 
 
TO: Surrey Police Board Administrator   
 
FROM: Chief Constable  FILE: 60550-20-03 
 
SUBJECT: Hiring, Diversity and Deployment Update 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chief Constable recommends that the Surrey Police Board (the "Board") receive this report for 
information. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
SPS continues to attract high quality applicants with diverse backgrounds, skills, and qualifications with a focus 
on recruiting police officers who are representative of the communities we serve. As of February 15, 2024, SPS 
has 417 employees, comprised of 357 sworn and 60 civilian staff.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Experienced Officer Hiring and Deployment 
Hiring and deployment of SPS officers into the RCMP Municipal Police Unit (MPU) is ongoing, to meet the 
direction and expectations of the Minister of Public Safety and Solicitor General. Hiring and deployments are 
guided by the Minister’s direction to align with the joint SPS-RCMP HR Strategy and Plan.   
 
Currently 195 SPS Officers are operationally deployed into the MPU. 23 officers that were previously 
deployed are awaiting redeployment (illness, injured, mat/pat, personal leaves, etc.). 42 Experienced 
Officers are waiting for deployment assignments and are meanwhile temporarily assigned to building the 
organization. 70 Experienced Officers make up the SPS core administration, including the Executive 
Leadership Team.  
 
SPS officers that have not been deployed are assigned to critical infrastructure roles, working to build the 
necessary systems and supports for the department, such as: HR, IT, Recruiting, Training, Professional 
Standards, Policy Development, and Planning. Civilian employees perform important administrative and 
management functions, such as: Administrative Support, Finance, Facilities Management, Communications, 
and Legal Services.  
 



2 
 
Experienced officers have come from 26 different police agencies across Canada, providing SPS with a broad 
spectrum of perspectives and experience. To date, 114 officers have been hired with RCMP backgrounds, 
and 188 have come from municipal or other police departments. 55 new recruits make up the balance.  
 
Recruit Hiring  
 
37 new recruits have completed their training and are now deployed into the MPU.  
 
Recruit Class 4 (171) 
4 SPS  recruits in Class 171, scheduled to graduate from the JIBC on March 8, 2024. 

Recruit Class 5 (172) 
7 SPS recruits in Class 172, scheduled to graduate from the JIBC on July 5, 2024. 

Recruit Class 6 (173) 
9 SPS recruits in Class 173 began training on January 8, 2024. 

Recruit Class 7 (174) 
Recruiting for the May 2024 class is currently underway.  
 
Diversity Statistics 
 
The SPS Recruiting Unit strives to ensure that the composition of SPS reflects the diversity that exists in the 
City of Surrey.  A diverse workforce will help SPS to engage with citizens and ensure that SPS hears and 
understands their concerns, perspectives and needs. SPS also believes it is important for the public and 
potential applicants to know about the organization and people that have chosen to work at SPS. 
 
The current composition of SPS sworn officers includes: 
 

• 20% female overall 
o 34.5% of new Recruits are female 

• 48% culturally diverse backgrounds, including: 
o 5% Indigenous 
o 19% South Asian 

• 37 languages spoken 

CONCLUSION 

The above matters are provided for the Board’s awareness and information.  Regular updates will be 
provided.  

 
Norm Lipinski, OOM, LLB, MBA 
Chief Constable 
 



 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 
REGULAR 

REPORT DATE: March 6, 2024 

BOARD MEETING DATE: March 13, 2024 

BOARD REPORT # 2024-R004  

 
 
 
TO: Surrey Police Board Administrator   
 
FROM: Chief Constable  FILE: 60550-20-03 
 
SUBJECT: Police Resources in British Columbia 2022 Publication 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chief Constable recommends that the Surrey Police Board (the "Board") receive this report for 
information. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Ministry of Public Safety and Solicitor General, Policing and Security Branch (PSB), produces a yearly 
“Police Resources in British Columbia” (PRBC) document.  The most recent publication1 was prepared in 
December 2023, and released on February 9, 2024.  The document contains information about policing 
costs, strengths and caseloads within the province.  It also provides an overview of policing functions and 
responsibilities, a complete list of municipal, provincial and First Nations policing jurisdictions, and statistics 
about police resources. 
 
The information in the document is compiled by PSB by means of a survey completed and returned yearly by 
each police agency, as well as statistics compiled by the provincial and federal governments.  Extensive 
explanatory notes are included in the document, warning that caution should be taken when comparing 
statistics, however, it does provide a valuable source of information indicating trends, costs and 
demographic information.   

DISCUSSION 

Municipal Police Model in Transition 

New this year, the 2022 PRBC publication splits out the provision of policing in Surrey into a new category, 
“Municipal Police Model in Transition”.  Explanatory notes in the report provide a summary of the transition 
background and future plans for the transition of policing services, and demobilization of the RCMP.  This 
new format intends to reflect the integrated RCMP/SPS policing model until its completion, providing 
transparency throughout the transition process.  

 
1 B.C. Police Resources 2022 (gov.bc.ca) 
 

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/law-crime-and-justice/criminal-justice/police/publications/statistics/bc-police-resources-2022.pdf


2 
 

 

 

“The authorized strength for the Surrey Municipal Police Unit reflects the combined resources from both 
Surrey’s RCMP Municipal Police Unit and SPS, which includes additional resources needed for the 
establishment of SPS and/or awaiting operational deployment within the Surrey Municipal Police Unit. 
Caution should be used when reviewing Surrey’s caseload as it is calculated on the total authorized strength 
of the two police agencies which includes these additional resources.  
 
On April 13, 2022, per the terms of the City’s MPUA, the City requested a decrease of 170 Regular Members 
assigned to the Surrey RCMP Municipal Unit.  As a result, the Surrey RCMP Municipal Unit’s total authorized 
strength has been decreased from 843 to 673 members. As of December 31, 2022, the total strength for SPS 
and Surrey RCMP Municipal Unit was a combined 1,023 member positions.” 
 
Comparative Statistics 
 
Page 27 of the report stresses caution when comparing statistics. “Comparisons of crime statistics between 
jurisdictions, provinces, and years should be made with caution, as many factors influence police-reported 
crime statistics other than actual changes in crime, such as: global events, demographic changes, social and 
economic trends, police reporting practices, public reporting practices to police, technological 
advancements, legislative amendments, local police service priorities, and social perceptions and attitudes 
towards certain crimes.” 
 
Bearing in mind PSB’s cautions respecting the comparison of data, particularly considering the transition, a 
high-level comparison can be helpful to understand where Surrey sits in relation to other agencies.  Surrey’s 
numbers can be expected to change yearly as the transition progresses and staffing levels normalize. 
 
 

Agency Population Authorized 
Strength 

Population/  
Officer 

Crime 
Rate* 

Case 
Load** 

Cost/ 
Capita 

Surrey 
(combined) 633,373 1,023 619 62 38 $352 
Vancouver 707,667 1,348 525 63 33 $528 
Abbotsford 168,608 210 776 47 36 $355 
Victoria 115,545 255 453 100 45 $553 

 
* number of Criminal Code offences (excluding drugs and traffic offences) reported for every 1,000 persons. 
**number of Criminal Code offences (excluding drugs and traffic offences) per sworn officer. 

 

 

 



3 
 

CONCLUSION 

The yearly publication of “Police Resources in British Columbia” is a valuable source of information and 
statistics for policing in the province.  The new format for the reporting of Surrey’s statistics will provide a 
progress report as the transition continues.  

The above matters are provided for the Board's awareness and information. 

 
Norm Lipinski, OOM, LLB, MBA 
Chief Constable 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 
REGULAR 

REPORT DATE: March 6, 2024 

BOARD MEETING DATE: March 13, 2024 

BOARD REPORT # 2024-R005 

 
 

 
 
TO: Surrey Police Board Administrator   
 
FROM: Chief Constable FILE: 60550-20-03 
  
SUBJECT: Year-End Report:  2023 Expenditures – Preliminary Financial Results 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chief Constable recommends that the Surrey Police Board (the “Board”) receive this report for 
information. 
 
PURPOSE 
 
This report presents a summary of expenditures incurred during the fiscal year that ended December 31, 2023.  
Please note that the City’s year-end audit is currently underway.  The financial information presented below is 
preliminary and is subject to change during the audit process as SPS’s financial results are consolidated with 
the City’s.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Based on our rate of expenditure up to the end of Q3 (September 30th), along with anticipated costs in Q4, 
our projection for total 2023 expenditures is presented below:  
 

 
 
 



2 
 
 
DISCUSSION 

SPS Operations  
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, total expenditures (operating and capital, not including the 
Police Transition Project expenditures) were $75.76M (100.4% of projected), presented below: 
 

 
 
Total expenditures were $327K (0.4%) higher than projected due to a year-end accrual of payroll costs.  
$2.29M in salaries and benefits was accrued from December 23-31, 2023, but not paid out until January 12, 
2024. This resulted in salaries and benefits showing an overage of $2.01M for the year despite the fact that 
the cash outlay occurred in 2024. 
 
During 2023, SPS spent $100K on board remunerations, $66.45M on employee salaries and benefits, $4.98M 
on capital expenditures, and $4.23M on other operating expenditures.  (Appendix I provides a breakdown of 
spending by Bureau.)  
 
At the end of the year, we had 394 active employees (346 sworn members, 37 regular/permanent civilians, 
and 11 temporary civilians).  Of these employees, 21 were assigned to temporary positions in recruiting, 
security clearance, auxiliary/on-call staff for backfill, and various other roles as part of the policing transition 
and establishing SPS; their salaries and benefits are allocated to the One-time Policing Transition Project 
fund.  
 
Other operating expenditures of $4.23M included $386K for training courses and seminars; $546K paid to 
JIBC for recruit training; $361K of electronic communications-related expenses; $306K of travel expenses 
(majority of which are training related); $62K of memberships and professional dues; $102K for lease and 
rentals (vehicles and shooting range); $847K for supplies and materials; $31K for publications and reference 
materials; $1.59M for outsourced services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 
 
One-Time Policing Transition Project (City of Surrey budget for SPS-related expenditures) 
For awareness, the City’s one-time policing transition project fund expenditures are reported below:  

 

Appendix II presents the details of the policing transition project costs related to establishing SPS based on 
our last financial forecast (prepared on September 30, 2023).  Expenditures for the year ended December 
31, 2023, totalled $9.08M of $24.38M available; details of significance are presented below: 
 

• Recruitment, Assessment, and Training expenses include costs incurred to support the recruiting 
surge for SPS, security clearances, testing and assessment of candidates, and training of new hires; 
year-to-date expenditures totalled $2.81M.  
 

• Human Resources expenses include personnel in various temporary roles (auxiliary staff) and HR 
consultant(s) to support establishing SPS; year-to-date expenditures totalled $607K.  
 

• Communications and Marketing expenditures include consultants managing public relations and 
brand development expenses to support the establishment of SPS; year-to-date expenditures 
totalled $204K. 
 

• Financial Services expenses include outsourced financial service consultants and personnel to 
support setting up SPS’s finance and payroll systems and databases; year-to-date expenditures 
totalled $29K.  
 

• Legal expenditures are specialized legal services for matters related to collective bargaining, human 
resources, trademarks, and other establishment legal costs; also included is the cost of in-house 
counsel seconded from the City.  The year-to-date expenditures totalled $297K. 
 

• Information Technology Systems and Capital costs include IT operating systems setup, external 
consultants for project management, building our technology infrastructure (data centre, dispatch 
systems, administrative systems), and the procurement of related assets; year-to-date expenditures 
totalled $3.47M.  
 

• Armoury, Outfit, and Other Equipment Capital costs are related to firearms, uniforms, personal issue 
kits, and other specialty equipment for policing; year-to-date expenditures totalled $1.22M.  
 

• Fleet Conversion, Capital, and Other Infrastructure expenditures include expenses to convert the 
incoming fleet of RCMP vehicles, initial SPS vehicles ordered in 2021, and temporary personnel costs 
allocated by the City to support building SPS’s infrastructure; year-to-date expenditures totalled 
$430K. 



4 
 
CONCLUSION 

In summary, while operating and capital expenditures were $327K higher than projected, our expenditures 
from the transition project fund were $570K lower than projected.   

 
 
Norm Lipinski, OOM, LLB, MBA 
Chief Constable 
 

 
Appendix I  Surrey Police Service Year-to-Date Expenditures – December 31, 2023 (Projected vs. Actual) 
Appendix II One-Time Policing Transition Fund as of December 31, 2023  

 
 
 
 



5 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 
REGULAR 

REPORT DATE: March 6, 2024 

BOARD MEETING DATE: March 13, 2024 

BOARD REPORT # 2024-R006 

 
 
TO: Surrey Police Board Administrator   
 
FROM: Executive Director FILE: 60550-20-02 
 
SUBJECT: Surrey Police Board – 2023 Per Diems  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Executive Director recommends the Surrey Police Board (the “Board”) receive this report for 
information.  
 
SUMMARY 
 
This report provides information regarding Police Board per diems to Board Directors for 2023.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Surrey Police Board Governance Manual outlines a per diem structure that is aligned with 
Vancouver and Delta Police Boards.  The per diem is not to be considered ‘payment’ for board work; it is 
a recognition that Board members are required to commit time to SPB that may take away from work 
and personal time.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
In 2023, prior to its pause, Board Directors continued to commit significant personal time to support the 
establishment of the Surrey Police Service.   
 
Under the Police Act, the Board is required to: 

1. Appoint and monitor the performance of the Chief Constable 
2. Approval of all administrative and operational SPS policies 
3. Investigate Service or Policy Complaints 
4. Develop, approve, and monitor the SPS Budget.  

 
In addition, the Board has a significant oversight role in the development of the SPS Strategic Plan.  The 
metrics developed from the Strategic Plan will be used by the Board to monitor the performance of SPS 
and its executive team.  
 
By way of the approved Surrey Police Board Manual, the Board adopted the same per diem structure as 
both Delta and Vancouver Police Boards.   
 



- 2 - 
 
Appendix I shows per diems paid, by Director, from January to November 16, 2023.  Payments shown for 
December are for November, 2023 per diems, paid the month following. 
 
Note:  Two Director per diem payments for November, 2023 were paid in 2024 due to timing of 
processing the payment but reflected in the totals for 2023. 
 
Note:  The Board was paused by the Province on November 16, 2023, and an Administrator was 
appointed on November 16, 2023. 
 

Meetings - January to December 2023 
 

Type of meeting Total for 2023 
Board Meetings 10 
Special Board Meetings 9 
Finance Committee 10 
Governance Committee 10 
Human Resources & Compensation Committee 14 
Communications Committee 9 
Workshops and Training  12 
**Other 15 
TOTAL MEETINGS 89 

 
** Includes meetings with the provincial government, BCAPB, CAPG and others. 

 
The Board budgeted $180,000 in 2023 for Board remuneration, recognizing the volume of work required 
to stand up Surrey Police Service.  For 2024, the Board submitted a status quo budget for Board 
operations, which continues to include $180,000 for Board remuneration due to the work that will be 
required to support the SPS as it works towards becoming Police of Jurisdiction in Surrey.  
 
A high-level snapshot of the Board’s work in 2023 includes:  
 

- Ongoing oversight of SPS development 
- Policy development and approval (near completion) 
- 2024 Budget development and submission to the City of Surrey 
- Ongoing budget oversight (one-time and operational budgets) 
- Oversight of Service or Policy complaints  
- Oversight of Freedom of Information requests 
- Ongoing Board communications strategies 
- SPS Strategic Plan development and approval 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
This annual report will be re-established when the Board is reinstated.  
 

 
Melissa Granum 
Executive Director 
 
Appendix I – 2023 Per Diems Paid - By Director 



 
Appendix I 

 
 

2023 Per Diems Paid - By Director 
 

 

 


	Agenda - Regular Board 2024 03 13
	Minutes - Regular Board 2024 01 19
	R003 - Hiring, Diversity and Deployment Update
	R004 - Police Resources in British Columbia 2022 Publication
	R005 - Year-End Report:  2023 Expenditures - Preliminary Financial Results
	Appendix I - SPS YTD Expenditures
	Appendix II - One-Time Policing Transition Fund as of December 31, 2023
	R006 - Surrey Police Board - 2023 Per Diems
	Appendix I - 2023 Per Diems Paid - by Director



